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Appearances: Janine C. @ snondi, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor,
U S. Department of Labor, Phil adel phia, Pennsyl vani a,
for Petitioner;
Loui se Q Synons, Esq., U S. Steel M ning Conpany,
Pi tt sburgh, Pennsylvania, for Respondent.

Bef or e: Judge Koutras
Statement of the Proceedi ngs

These proceedi ngs concern civil penalty proposals filed by
the petitioner against the respondent pursuant to section 110(a)
of the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U S.C
820(a), seeking civil penalty assessnments for 12 alleged
viol ations of certain mandatory safety standards pronul gated
pursuant to the Act.

Respondent contested the proposed civil penalties, and
pursuant to notice duly served on the parties, hearings were held
i n Uni ont own, Pennsyl vania. The petitioner filed post-hearing
briefs, and the argunents and proposed findi ngs and concl usi ons
recited therein have been considered by nme in the course of these
deci si ons. Respondent opted not to file any briefs.
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| ssues

The principal issue presented in these proceedings are (1)
whet her respondent has viol ated the provisions of the Act and
i npl enenting regul ations as alleged in the proposal for
assessnment of civil penalty filed, and, if so, (2) the
appropriate civil penalty that should be assessed agai nst the
respondent for the alleged violations based upon the criteria set
forth in section 110(i) of the Act. Additional issues raised are
identified and di sposed of where appropriate in the course of
t hese decisions. Included anobng these issues is the question as
to whether the cited violations were "significant and
substantial ."

In determ ning the anount of a civil penalty assessment,
section 110(i) of the Act requires consideration of the foll ow ng
criteria: (1) the operator's history of previous violations, (2)
t he appropriateness of such penalty to the size of the business
of the operator, (3) whether the operator was negligent, (4) the
effect on the operator's ability to continue in business, (5) the
gravity of the violation, and (6) the denonstrated good faith of
the operator in attenpting to achi eve rapid conpliance after
notification of the violations.

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

1. The Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977; Pub. L.
95-164, 30 U.S.C. 0801 et seq.

2. Section 110(i) of the 1977 Act, 30 U. S.C. [0820(i).
3. Commission Rules, 29 C.F.R [2700.1 et seq.
Sti pul ations

The parties stipulated that the respondent owns and operates
the Maple Creek No. 1 and No. 2 Mnes, and that the respondent
and the mnes are subject to the Act and to the jurisdiction of
t he Conmi ssion and the presiding judge.

The parties also stipulated that the respondent is a |arge
m ne operator and that the proposed civil penalty assessnents
wi Il not adversely affect the respondent’'s ability to continue in
busi ness (Tr. 5).
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Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons

Docket No. PENN 83-121

This case concerns two section 104(a) "S & S" citations
i ssued by MSHA I nspector Francis E. Wehr on Decenber 15, 1982,
and January 12, 1983. The first citation, No. 2102682, asserts
that 73 roof bolts were installed in the roof at two overcasts
whi ch had been shot down, but that no washers were provided
between the 6 x 6 inch bearing plate and the 6-foot conventiona
roof bolt. The inspector believed that this was a violation of
the roof control plan and mandatory safety standard 30 CFR
75. 200.

The second citation, No. 2102696, asserts that a crosscut
used as a shelter hole for the track haul age was obstructed with
three 55-gallon oil drums and 22 stacked bags of rock dust. The
i nspector believed that a person would have trouble getting into
the crosscut for shelter upon the approach of any haul age
equi prent, and he cited a violation of mandatory safety standard
30 CFR 75.1403.

During the course of the hearing, petitioner's counse
advised nme that after further consultation with the inspector,
citation No. 2102682 cannot be supported, and that the citation
will be vacated (Tr. 6). Petitioner's counsel presented a ful
and conpl ete argunent in support of this action (Tr. 504-505).

Wth regard to citation No. 2102696, petitioner's counse
stated that upon further reflection, the inspector was now of the
view that the violation was not "significant and substantial,"
and that he has agreed to delete that finding fromthe violation
notice as originally issued. Petitioner's counsel presented a
full argunment in support of this proposed action by the inspector
(Tr. 506-511).

Respondent' s counsel asserted that the crosscut being used
as a shelter hole was 17-feet wide and that there was room for
persons to manuever in and out. Counsel pointed out that the only
person in that area is a switchman, and that the chances that he
will have to use the shelter are very slim(Tr. 508).
Petitioner's counsel agreed that there was room enough for
persons to manuever between the stated obstructions, and that is
t he reason why she believes the violation is not "significant and
substantial™ (Tr. 509).
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After careful consideration of the argunent presented, | affirm
the inspector's vacation of citation No. 2102682, and that
portion of the petitioner's civil penalty proposal seeking a
penalty assessnent for this citation IS DI SM SSED, and the
citation IS VACATED

Wth regard to citation 2102696, | take note of the fact
that the citation cites a violation of section 75.1403, which
provi des as foll ows:

O her safeguards adequate, in the judgnent of an

aut hori zed representative of the Secretary, to mnimze
hazards with respect to transportation of nmen and
material s shall be provided.

I nspector Wehr cited a previous safeguard notice, No.
391170, issued by Inspector Eugene W Beck on March 1, 1979, to
support the citation which he issued. The previous safeguard
notice required that all shelter holes and crosscuts used as
shelter hol es be kept clean of |oose coal, rock, supplies, and
debris.

On the facts of this case, the respondent has not rebutted
the fact that the crosscut in question was used as a shelter
Further, the respondent concedes that the obstructions as stated
by the inspector on the face of his citation were in fact
present. Accordingly, | conclude and find that the petitioner has
established the fact of violation by a preponderance of the
evi dence. The previous safeguard notice served on the respondent
required the respondent to nmaintain any shelter holes, or
crosscuts used as shelter holes, free of debris and other
materials so as to provide ready access into the shelter. Since
this was not done here, petitioner has established a violation
and the citation I'S AFFIRVED. The "S & S" finding IS VACATED

Docket No. PENN 83-129

Thi s docket concerns six section 104(a) "S & S" citations
i ssued by MSHA Inspector Alvin L. Shade at the respondent's Maple
Creek No. 2 Mne, and the conditions or practices cited are as
fol | ows:

Citation 2102605. The energized trolley wire at 2 Fl at
6 Chute track switch was not adequately guarded where
men are required to travel under regularly, as guard
boards were broken off the width of track haul age. M ne
was idle at tinme observed.
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Citation 2106208. The conti nuous m ni ng machi ne seria
no. JM 3476 approval no. 2 "G 3227 A-00 in 4 Flat right
section was not maintained in perm ssible condition as
the fluorescent |ight opposite the GM operator was not
securely fastened to the machine as there were two bolts
m ssing in nmounting bracket.

Citation 2102609. The approved roof control plan was
not being conplied with in Aentry 1 to 2, 4 Flat
section, as tenporary roof supports (jacks) were not
installed according to the roof control plan as center
jack was installed first and installed two jacks at
sanme tinme.

Citation 2102611. The energi zed power w res serving
power to the indicator lights for reck latch, and track
haul age switch signal lights at nmouth of 6 Flat A track
switch were in contact with conbustible material as
reck latch lights were hung on wooden post and had
wires taped to sanme. Also, switch signal lights were in
contact with wooden cribs, wooden plank used to saddle
beans, and roof coal

Ctation 2102618. The twi n boom Fl etcher roof bolter
serial no. 14242 approval no. 29-2607A-3 in 6 Flat 19
rmsection was not maintained in perm ssible condition
as there were two lights on the operator's side which
were not secured to the machine as bolts were m ssing
in the nounting.

Citation 2102619. There was a violation of the approved
ventil ation, nethane and dust control plan in 20 rm 32
split 6 Flat 19 rm section as there was only 2400
c.f.m of air reaching the end of the line curtain as
measured with an anenoneter while coal was being m ned
with a continuous m ning machi ne and plan calls for
5,000 c.f.m

I nspect or Shade confirmed that he issued citation 2102605
after observing that an energi zed overhead trolley wire was not
guarded at a point where it crossed over the main track where the
| oconoti ves, jeeps, and port-a-buses passed under (Tr. 14). The
trolley wire at this point is approximately five to five and
one-hal f feet above the ground, and it is usually guarded on both
sides by boards to prevent anyone fromcomng in contact with the
wire. The guard board had broken off at the point where the wire
crossed the main track, thereby |eaving the unguarded wre
exposed and unpr ot ect ed
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for a distance of approximately six to eight feet (Tr. 16). The
wire carries 550 DC volts, and at the tine he observed the
condition, the section was idle and coal was not being mned (Tr.
16). However, section forenmen, nechanics, punpers, and rock dust
crews would be "in the area,” and they woul d pass under the
trolley wire since that was the normal way to get to the section
(Tr. 17).

I nspector Shade testified that if anyone came into contact
with the unguarded wire, they would likely suffer shock or burns.
He also indicated that fatalities have occurred in cases where
m ners contacted such wires under "just the right conditions."” He
i ndicated that nost of the trolley wires in the places he cited
were | ower than in other places, and that sonmeone could contact a
wi re by wal ki ng under it or when getting out of equi pnent which
has stopped in the area. He stated that he, as well as pre-shift
exam ners, wal k under the wire at the |location that he cited. He
al so indicated that during his inspection, the union wal karound
representative advised himthat soneone at a nei ghbori ng m ne had
cone in contact with an unguarded trolley wire and was taken out
of the mne, but that the person was "all right." The inspector
also alluded to two fatalities at another mine that he was aware
of which were caused by persons coming into contact with
unguarded trolley wires (Tr. 21). He identified the nmne as the
Mat hi es M ne, and confirned that the accidents occurred about a
year prior to his issuance of the citation here in question (Tr.
22).

On cross-exam nation, M. Shade conceded that 95% of the
trolley wire in the mne is not required to be guarded, and while
it my be true that mners are aware of the |ocations and hazards
associated with trolley wires, they sonetinmes becone conpl acent.
M. Shade confirmed that an insul ated hard hat woul d protect
someone from shock if they cane in contact with the wire with the
hat (Tr. 29). He conceded that it is not necessary to stop a
pi ece of machi nery under the unguarded wire, and that there are
ot her areas where the wire crosses the track where equi pnent can
stop without any problens (Tr. 31). Someone sitting in a vehicle
passi ng under the wire would be about two feet fromit, but if he
stands up for sone reason, he may contact the wire (Tr. 32-33).

Respondent' s Testi nony
Respondent's counsel made a proffer that if called, Wayne

Croushore woul d testify that the person perform ng the pre-shift
exam nation in the area cited by Inspector Shade
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woul d be riding in a vehicle rather than wal king, and that M.
Croushore woul d be of the opinion that during the time of the

i nspection it would be highly unlikely that anyone woul d ever be
injured by a trolley wire (Tr. 374). He would also testify that
he has no personal know edge of anyone at the mine ever comng in
contact with a trolley wire (Tr. 376).

M. Croushore testified in connection with a simlar
citation issued in Docket No. PENN 83-137, and his testinony
there was that when he is in a piece of equipnent traveling under
awire, he will duck his head to avoid contact with the overhead
trolley wire. He indicated that he has heard of people "being
hit" by such a wire, and when asked what injuries would result
fromone comng in contact with a 550 volt trolley wire, he
responded "it would depend on how they hit it" (Tr. 381). He al so
admtted that he would not be surprised to | earn that soneone
could be injured or killed after coming in contact with a 550
volt trolley wire, and he conceded that this was a | ot of power
and "you respect it" (Tr. 382).

Mandat ory safety standard section 75.1003, requires in
pertinent part that trolley wires be adequately guarded at any
poi nt where nmen are required to work or pass regul arly under such
wires. On the testinmony and evi dence adduced here, it seens clear
to ne that the portion of the overhead trolley wire which M.
Shade cited was not adequately guarded. The guard boards usually
in place had apparently fallen off and were not in place. It also
seens clear to me that the |ocation where the trolley wre passed
over the track was in fact where nen and equi pnent regularly
travel ed while going into the section, and that during this
travel, nmen and equi pnment passed under the wire, either on foot
or in a piece of equipnent. | conclude and find that the
petitioner has established a violation, and citation 2102605 IS
AFFI RVED

Wth regard to the two permssibility violations, citations
2102608 and 2102618, petitioner's counsel stated that |nspector
Shade has agreed to delete his "significant and substantial"”
findings on the ground that he has now determined that the cited
lights on the continuous mning machi ne and roof bolter in
guestion were "instrinsicly safe" under MBHA's permissibility
gui del i nes. Under the circunstances, MSHA's counsel was of the
view that it was not reasonably likely that an accident or injury
woul d occur as the result of the missing bolts on the nounting
brackets for the lights in question (Tr. 73-80; 285).

The respondent does not dispute the fact that the conditions
or practices stated in citations 2102608 and 2102618,
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constituted violations of the permssibility requirenments stated
in mandatory safety standard section 75.503. Under the
circunstances, the citati ons ARE AFFI RVED

I nspect or Shade confirmed that he issued citation 2102611
for a violation of section 75.516, after observing that certain
signal lights which were hung up were in contact wth wooden
cribs, a wooden pl ank, and roof coal. He described the reck latch
switch lights as a string of lights used to indicate where a
derail device is located (Tr. 390). The lights were hung on a
post and were strung down al ong side of the post, and the wire
and lights were taped to the wooden post (Tr. 391). The wires
were single insulated wires carrying 550 volts od DC power, and
this was also true of the lights used for the track haul age
signal (Tr. 393).

M. Shade stated that the reck latch lights in question are
usual ly installed and hung on insulators, but that in this case
he specul ated that they had been torn down and soneone sinply put
t hem back up by using plastic tape to tape themto the post (Tr.
393). As for the signal lights, they were hung where they usually
are, but the wire was strung through the cribs used to support
the roof, and the wire was strung over the crib plank and was in
contact with the crib as well as the roof coal, and it too
carried 550 volts DC power (Tr. 394).

M. Shade stated that the wires being in contact with the
wooden cribs and roof coal presented a fire hazard, and that in
the event of a broken wire, damaged insulation, or a short there
woul d be such a hazard (Tr. 395). Atrolley pole could junp off
and damage the wires, although he conceded that it would not
happen in the area where he found the wires in question (Tr.

395). He confirmed that the conditions were abated by hanging the
reck Iights on insul ated hooks, and taking the other |ights off
the cribs and hangi ng those on insul ated hooks also (Tr. 399).

On cross-exam nation, M. Shade stated that he believed the
m ne was idle when he issued the citation. However, there was
power on the wires, and the wires were fully insul ated. However,
even so, he believed there is always a hazard because w res can
be danaged by falling materials or the insulation could be
damaged. However, he couldn't say whether there was any tension
on the wires, and he did not observe that the wi res were rubbing
in any way (Tr. 401). He confirned that the area was a haul ageway
on intake air, and that in the event of a fire it would have
attracted soneone's attenti on downstreamof the air. He al so
confirmed that the area is
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subject to a weekly electrical exam nation, and he had no reason
to believe that the condition would not have been di scovered at
t he next weekly exam nation (Tr. 404).

M. Shade admitted that he did not check the pre-shift
books, and he had no idea how long the cited conditions existed
(Tr. 421). He admitted that he is not an electrician, and he
found no break in the wire insulation (Tr. 409).

Mandat ory safety standard section 75.516, requires that all
power w res be supported on well-insul ated insulators and that
t hey not contact conbustible material, roof, or ribs. In this
case, it seens clear fromthe unrebutted testi nony of |nspector
Shade that the wires on which the lights in question were strung
were in fact touching wooden cribs, planks, and the roof coal
all of which is conmbustible material. Further, the reck lights
were not hung on insulators, but were nerely taped to a wooden
post. Under the circunstances, | conclude and find that the
petitioner has established a violation, and citation 2102611 IS
AFFI RVED

Wth regard to citation 2102619, |nspector Shade confirned
that he issued it after determning that only 2,400 cubic feet of
air per mnute was reaching the end of the line curtain where
coal was being mned with a continuous m ning machi ne. The
ventilation plan, exhibit P-8, required that 5,000 cubic feet of
air per minute be maintained (Tr. 443-445). The purpose of the
air requirement is to sweep the face of any gases or dust (Tr.
446) .

M. Shade stated that when he first arrived on the section
he and the foreman (Andy Peters) determned that there was 3,600
cubic feet of air at the end of the Iine curtain. However, since
coal was not being mined at that tine, this was not a violation
However, M. Shade rem nded the foreman that he had to nmaintain
5,000 cubic feet of air when mning began, and the foreman knew
this (Tr. 446). M. Shade then left the area. However, when he
returned, coal m ning had begun, and he noticed that dust was
rolling back over the continuous mner operator. M. Peters
informed himthat he had 5,700 cubic feet of air, and M. Peters
then left the area. M. Shade waited until the operator was
finished | oading, and after asking himto back the m ner out, M.
Shade took an air reading with an anenoneter at the end of the
line curtain and found 2,400 cubic feet per mnute (Tr. 449).

M. Shade stated that after taking his reading, M. Peters
repaired the line curtain, but he still got only 3,750 cubic feet
of air. M. Peters then discovered that part of the line
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curtain was against a rib, and after "framng it out,” M. Shade
t ook anot her reading and got 5,700 cubic feet of air (Tr. 451).

M. Shade testified that the mne |iberates nethane, and
that it is on a section 103(i) inspection cycle. He had no
know edge as to how | ong the m ne had been under such an
i nspection cycle, nor did he have any know edge as to a purported
previously issued order for nethane accurul ations (Tr. 457). He
did confirmthat he had previously issued a citation for nethane
accunul ation, but could supply no details, and he had no
know edge whether it was on the sanme section or not (Tr. 460).

M. Shade confirned that he nade a nethane check, and found
one-tenth of one percent nethane, and he conceded that it was not
possi ble for a nethane ignition to occur with this anmpount of
nmet hane present. He indicated that the expl osive range of methane
is five to ten percent (Tr. 463). He conceded that the tine tine
he issued the citation there was no hazard of a methane ignition
and that he had no know edge as to how much of the dust that he
observed was "respirable dust" (Tr. 463).

Respondent' s Testi nony

Andrew Peters, Assistant Section Mne Foreman, testified as
to the events which occurred at the tine the violation in
guestion was issued. He testified that he exam ned the face area,
t ook met hane readi ngs, and found 4,000 and 5,000 cubic feet per
mnute at the place where mining was to begin. After receiving a
conplaint fromthe continuous m ner operator with respect to dust
rolling back over his machine, he took an air readi ng behind the
curtain, and found less than 5,000 cubic feet per mnute. He
found that the air was being short-circuited, and he instructed
that repairs be nade. After this was done, he nmeasured the
required 5,000 feet and left the area (Tr. 486). He later
determ ned that sone brattice curtain had been knocked down, and
that the air was interupted, and he believed that the m ner
operator and his hel per shoul d have been aware of this situation
(Tr. 497-499). He had no opinion as to whether it was |ikely that
an injury would occur as a result of the cited conditions (Tr.
491).

On cross-exam nation, M. Peters confirmed the air readi ngs
taken by the inspector to support the citation, and he even
conceded that the inspector gave himthe benefit of
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t he doubt by using a correction factor on his anenmoneter (Tr.
493-494). He al so expl ained the circunstances surroundi ng the
abatement efforts made to correct the cited condition (Tr.
496-500). M. Peters admtted to "a few nethane ignitions" at the
Mapl e Creek No. 2 Mne, but he indicated that they were face
ignitions which did not result in any explosions (Tr. 500).

After consideration of all of the testinony and evi dence
here adduced, | conclude and find that the petitioner has
established a violation by a preponderance of the evidence.
Accordingly, citation no. 2102619 IS AFFI RVED

I nspect or Shade confirmed that he issued citation no.
2102609, because the respondent violated its approved roof
control plan when it installed two roof support jacks
si mul taneously i nby unsupported roof after a center jack had been
installed in an entry. The roof control plan does not permt the
si mul taneous installation of two jacks because it places the nen
under unsupported roof (Tr. 99). M. Shade identified exhibit
P-3, drawing No. 2 as the particular roof control provision which
he clains was violated (Tr. 102). He explained that the roof
jacks are installed after the particular cut has been m ned out,
and that when he arrived on the section, a "short cut" had been
m ned, and the jacks were installed in preparation for roof
bolting (Tr. 103).

M. Shade expl ai ned the roof control draw ng, and he
confirmed that the jacks labeled A, B, and C were in place, and
he expl ai ned the sequence for installing the remaining ones (Tr.
105-107). He explained that with the A, B, and C jacks in place,
the men next installed jack No. 2, the center jack, and then
wal ked i nby unsupported roof and installed jacks Nos. 4 and 6.
This violated the plan, since jacks Nos. 1 through 6 should have
been installed in sequence (Tr. 108; 111). The proper procedure
is toinstall one jack, and then go to the next one. Here, the
men installed two at a tinme, and they were exposed to nore
unsupported roof than was necessary (Tr. 109). He confirnmed that
t he di stance between the No. 4 and No. 6 jacks was approxi mately
9 1/2 feet (Tr. 110).

M. Shade described the roof as "abnormal," and that it had
"potted in different places,” and this is the reason why a "short
cut" of approximately 12 feet had been mned. He al so indicated
that the roof in the entire section had "clay veins," and "they
had slips which passed through a | oose roof that fall out at any
time" (Tr. 112). He believed that the respondent knew the roof
was bad and that is why 12-foot
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cuts were being mned (Tr. 113). M. Shade was aware of a roof
fatality which occurred at the Maple Creek No. 1 M ne | ast
sumer, but he is not aware of any at the No. 2 mne (Tr. 115).

M. Shade stated that abatenment was achieved by installing
the jacks according to the plan, but he could not recall if the
section foreman was present when the jacks were installed (Tr.
118). M. Shade confirmed that he observed the nen walk in with
the nunber 4 and 6 jacks and he called them back out of the area
with the jacks, and he reviewed the installation plan with them
(Tr. 119).

On cross-exam nation, M. Shade conceded that the roof
control plan does not specifically state that two nmen may not
install roof jacks at the sane tine, but that it does provide for
a particul ar sequence in which the jacks have to be installed. He
al so indicated that one can only go under unsupported roof for a
di stance of five feet and that the plan provides "that you can
only use the people to install jacks that you need to instal
jacks" (Tr. 127).

M. Shade confirned that at the tinme he issued the citation
three jacks (A, B, ©, were in place. The nen then installed jack
no. 2, then walked into the entry with jacks 4 and 6, and that is
when he call ed them back out and advi sed themthat they were out
of compliance (Tr. 133, 139). He confirmed that when jack No. 2
was installed, it was within 5 1/2 feet of the |ast row of roof
bolts, and that since a 12-foot cut was being mned, jack No. 2
woul d have been 6 1/2 feet fromthe face (Tr. 134). He stated
that had the men installed jacks 1, 2, and 3 before going inby to
begin installing jacks 4, 5, and 6 there would not have been a
violation (Tr. 135).

M. Shade conceded that he nade no neasurenents at the tine
he issued the citation, and he conceded that the nen being four
feet beyond the center jack would have been within 2 1/2 feet of
the face (Tr. 140). He confirned that at the tine the citation
i ssued, the area had been nmined, and the roof was being supported
in preparation for roof bolting. He conceded that it was possible
that the reason a 12-foot cut was taken was that time ran out on
the last shift, and that it was possible that the 12-foot cut had
nothing to do with the roof conditions (Tr. 150).
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M. Shade agreed that the roof control plan pernmits soneone to go
under unsupported roof to install tenporary supports, and after
the first row of jacks are installed, the roof is no |onger
unsupported, and a person may then go 5 1/2 feet inby the |ast
support to install the next one (Tr. 153). He further explained
the violation, as follows (Tr. 154):

Q So the man who set the center jack was in violation
of the plan?

A. Yes, he was.
Q Because he was beyond five and a half feet?

A. Because he set that in the center of the entry. If
he woul d have started with five and three, it wouldn't
have been in violation; but he started in the center
which didn't put himwithin five feet of a rib or

anot her j ack.

Q If the two nen setting No. 4 and No. 6 jack, what
you call No. 4 and No. 6 jack, were within five and a
hal f feet of the last row of bolts, there was no

vi ol ati on?

A. Well, then they set both of these jacks, you sent
nore people in that is necessary and you cannot do
t hi s.

In response to further questions, M. Shade testified as
follows (Tr. 160-163):

Q M. Shade, now, you testified that the first jack
you actually observed being installed was jack No. 2 on
Drawi ng No. 2 and then you next observed that two
mners were going to install jacks No. 4 and 6.

Now, how do you know t hat? What specifically did you
see themdo that | ed you to conclude that they were
going to install jacks 4 and 67

A. | saw themgoing in there
Q Wth what did they have with then?
A. Two jacks. Each had a jack. They started to instal

them They had themup in the roof and they pulled the
jack and came back out.
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Q They actually started the installation process?
A. Yes.
Q At the locations that you have already identified?

A Well, they went in there with both jacks. Wat they
do- -

JUDGE KOUTRAS: Were the jacks set?
THE W TNESS: They weren't secured agai nst the roof.

JUDGE KOUTRAS: Did they bring the jacks back out wth
them -

THE W TNESS: Yes.
JUDGE KQUTRAS: - -when you cal |l ed them back out?

THE WTNESS: | asked them what they were doing. | said
they're in violation.

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: What if they woul d have had the jacks
al ready set, would you have forced themto take them
back out?

THE WTNESS: No, | wouldn't have forced anybody.
JUDGE KQUTRAS: They had not installed it?

THE W TNESS: No

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: Wien you cal |l ed them back out, did they
carry the jacks back out?

THE WTNESS: Yes, that's what | have on ny draw ng.
BY Ms. d SMONDI

Q Now, M. Shade, what specifically, to the best of
your recollection, what was done to termnate this
vi ol ati on?

A Well, inthe first place, they got to have three
jacks and the first--really three jacks, they installed
those three jacks and then they went in and installed

t he ot her jacks.
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Q So they installed jacks 1 and 3?

A Yes.

Q Then they installed the row 4, 5, and 6; is that
correct?

A. Yes.
Respondent' s Testi nony and Evi dence

Joseph Skonpski, assistant section foreman, testified as to
his experience, and he confirmed that he was famliar with the
m ne roof control plan. He confirned that he acconpani ed
| nspect or Shade during his inspection, and after referring to
drawi ng No. 2 of the roof control plan, he stated that jack No. 2
was installed, and the men then "grabbed jacks 1 and 3 and they
was going to set themand they went inby 2 a little bit" (Tr.
175). M. Shade then withdrew the nmen and di scussed the roof
control plan (Tr. 176).

M. Skonpski stated that jack Nos. 2, 1, A, B, and C were in
place at the tine the citation issued, and it was his
understandi ng that the violation was issued because two jacks
were installed at the same tine (Tr. 176). M. Skonpski conceded
that the roof plan requires that the roof supports be installed
"in sequence, row by row' (Tr. 178). He stated that the nen who
were installing the jacks were experienced mners, and that it
was his understanding that they intended to install jack Nos. 1
and 3, and he estimated that the center jack was 5 to 5 1/2 feet
fromthe last row of roof bolts (Tr. 181).

On cross-exam nation, M. Skonpski conceded that the roof
conditions on the section "weren't the best conditions"” (Tr.
182). He confirned that under the approved roof control plan
tenmporary roof jacks are to be installed "rib-to-rib" (Tr. 183).
He stated that he observed two nen carrying jacks, and that they
were going to install themat positions 1 and 3, as shown on the
diagram and that this would have placed themin Iine with jack
No. 3 (Tr. 185). Referring to the diagram M. Skonpski confirned
that if two men started at jack No. 2 and installed jack Nos. 1
and 3 fromeither side of No. 2, they would be in conmpliance with
the roof control plan as long as they stayed within 5 1/2 feet of
jack No. 2 (Tr. 193).

Samuel L. Cortis, respondent’'s chief mne inspector
testified that part of his job is to prepare roof control plans
for subm ssion to MSHA. He identified drawing No. 2, and stated
that it depicts two sets of roof control plans. He stated that
during the mning phase, roof control is
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acconpl i shed by installing jacks A through D, 1, 4, and 7, as
shown on the diagram (Tr. 214). Once mining is conpleted, and
roof bolting begins, there is an eight-jack tenporary roof
support plan that is put into operation, and he explained this
procedure (Tr. 214-217). He explained that drawing No. 1 depicts
where tenporary roof jacks are to be installed during certain
sequences in the mning cycle, and he expl ai ned the procedures
and confirmed that the ribs may be used as additional roof
protection while installing the jacks (Tr. 220). He further
expl ai ned how the jacks could be installed, and he indicated that
they need not be installed in nunerical sequence, as long as the
di stances between the jacks are maintained (Tr. 222).

On cross-exam nation, M. Cortis confirmed that as long as
the next jack is kept within five feet of a person for
protection, other jacks may be installed, regardless of the
sequence (Tr. 223). He explained the procedures followed in the
mne for the installation of jacks (Tr. 223-229), and he
confirmed that the maxi mum al | owabl e di stance that anyone can go
i nby the last row of permanent roof supports to install tenporary
roof jacks is 5 1/2 feet (Tr. 237).

Petitioner's counsel acknow edges that under the roof
control plan, a person may go out under unsupported roof to
install tenporary roof jacks as long as they are within 5 1/2
feet of the | ast tenporary support. Counsel's understandi ng of
the plan is that there are "two variabl es” that cone into play
with regard to how far a person may venture out under unsupported
roof. Counsel asserted that one may go inby the last row of
per manent supports (roof bolts), towards the face, for a distance
of 51/2 feet. However, at all tinmes, one nust remain within five
feet laterally of either rib or the next adjacent |ateral jack
(Tr. 230-231).

Referring to drawing no. 2, M. Cortis was asked certain
guestions regarding his interpretation of the jack installation
sequence and he responded as follows (Tr. 241-246):

JUDGE KQUTRAS: She asked you, Counsel has asked you a
guesti on before, what the maxi num di stance soneone can
wal k under an unsupported roof and you said five and a
half feet. Now, does that nean under five and a half
feet from permanent supports or fromtenporary supports
or both he can wal k out fron?
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THE WTNESS: From both. It would be either permanent or
t empor ary.

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: Wiat | have a probl em under st andi ng here
isif a fellowwalks out starting at the |ast row of
supports and wal ks out fromnine and a half feet to set
post No. 4, he would be in violation of the rule that
says you cannot be nore than five and a half feet inby
per manent supports; correct?

THE WTNESS: He would be, in that case.

JUDGE KQUTRAS: But wouldn't he be within five and a
hal f feet of C, which is a tenmporary roof support?

THE WTNESS: That's correct.
JUDGE KOQUTRAS: Then how is he in violation?

THE WTNESS: Well, only in, | guess, in what our
interpretation of the plan would be.

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: Now, Ms. G snondi, did you follow that?
Is he in violation?

M5. G SMONDI: Yes, | believe he is.
JUDGE KQUTRAS: Wy?

M5. ASMONDI: As | said, it is ny understanding that
there are maxi num al | owabl e di stances both from you
know, working both laterally, that is, how far you are
fromeither the rib or the next adjacent |ateral
support and how far inby are you.

I mean, as | said, | think there are two variabl es
goi ng on. You have got to have protection to either
side of you, you have to have protection behind you.

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: Well, now, that is the point. Look, this
second draw ng, | have got permanent roof bolts nine
and a half between the arrows.

M5. G SMONDI: Correct.
JUDGE KOQUTRAS: Dependi ng on how this man--let's assune

he starts at point A and wal ks out here (indicating).
Nine and a half feet with a jack over
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his shoul der, he is going nine and a half feet out
in unsupported roof in this direction and that
vi ol ates the plan?

M5. G SMONDI: As far as the Secretary is concerned,
yes.

JUDGE KOUTRAS: Because it is nore than five and a hal f
f eet.

M5. d SMONDI : Regardl ess of how close to the rib he is.
JUDGE KOQUTRAS: But if you've got tenporary roof C set
and the man wal ks under A and B and wal ks fromthis
point, he is not under unsupported roof at any tine, if
you consi der the permanent jack in place within five
and a half feet?

M5. A SMONDI: | would say, yes, he is, Judge, because,
agai n, he may have support to his left but he doesn't
have any support behind him

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: My hypot hetical says he got this far and
that support and the rib is there (indicating).

M5. GSMONDI: He is still nore than five and a hal f
feet. As | said, | think there--

JUDGE KQUTRAS: Fromthis reference point?

M5. A SMONDI: Right, which is the permanent bolt,
right.

JUDGE KQUTRAS: That is what the parties understand
Drawing No. 2 in this Roof Control is all about?

M5. G SMONDI: That is what | understand it to be.
JUDGE KQUTRAS: Is that your understanding, M. Cortis?
THE W TNESS: Yes.

JUDGE KQUTRAS: That is your understandi ng?

THE WTNESS: It is ny understanding that we have to be

within five and a half feet of support, permanent or
t empor ary.
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I nspect or Shade was called in rebuttal, and he identified a copy
of the notes he made at the tine the citation issued (exhibit
P-5; Tr. 254). He quoted fromhis notes, and he indicated that
they reflect that the jacks identified as A, B, and C, were in
pl ace when he arrived, that jack 2 was then next installed while
he observed the scene, and that the note "short cut installed
both at once" confirned that "they started installing" jacks 4
and 6 (Tr. 256). He believed that the mners who were going to
install the 4 and 6 jacks were in beyond jack 2 further than four
feet (Tr. 257).

Referring to roof plan drawing no. 2, M. Shade indicated
that under the plan, miners may go 5 1/2 feet inby permanent roof
supports to install tenporary jacks, and that after that they may
go four feet inby the tenporary jacks to install the next row of
tenmporary jacks (Tr. 258). He confirmed that the maxi num
al | owabl e di stance that a miner may go laterally fromeither the
next adjacent rib or support is five feet (Tr. 258). On
cross-exam nation, M. Shade further explained his notes,
mar ki ngs, and the observations which he made at the tinme the
citation issued (Tr. 259-282).

Citation No. 2102609 charges the respondent with a violation
of its approved roof control plan. Exhibit P-4 is a copy of the
applicabl e compl ete roof control plan, and exhibit P-3 contains
copi es of pages fromthe plan, and in particular two pages
| abel ed "Drawi ng No. 1" and Drawi ng No. 2." Although | nspector
Shade failed to include in the citation a specific reference to
t he applicable roof control provision which he believed was
violated, he testified that Drawing No. 2 was the particul ar plan
provi sion which was violated. His contention is that the
installation of two tenporary roof jacks, sinultaneously, is a
violation of the plan because it exposes the nminers installing
t hose jacks to unsupported roof.

Apart from any roof control violation, mandatory section
75. 200 prohibits anyone from proceeded beyond the |ast permanent
roof supports unl ess adequate tenporary support is provided.
Thus, the question here presented is (1) whether the respondent
has viol ated any specific portion of its approved roof control
pl an, and (2) absent a violation of the plan, was there a
vi ol ati on of section 75.200, when the two miners proceeded to
install the two jacks in question.

The testinony in this case concerning the applicabl e roof
control plan is nost confusing. Drawings 1 and 2 are used
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i nterchangeably, and respondent's witness Cortis, the nan who
drafted the plans for MSHA's approval, even went so far as to
testify that Drawing No. 2 contains "two plans.” By failing to
state on the face of the citation the precise roof control plan
provision allegedly violated, the inspector contributed to the
confusion. Although the citation states that two jacks were
installed simultaneously, the inspector conceded that there is
nothing in the plan to prohibit this per se. Al though the

i nspector characterized the roof condition as "abnormal," and

i ndicated that this explained why a "short cut" was being taken
on cross-exam nation he conceded that it was possible that a
"short cut"” was taken because of a tinme factor rather than
because of the roof conditions. Further, although the question of
di stances is critical here, the inspector conceded that he nade
no measurenents, and his contenporaneous notes (exhibit P-5),
shed no light on this. The notes sinply reflect that one jack was
installed first, and two others were installed at the sane tine.

I nspect or Shade testified that three jacks were installed
along the left rib of the entry in question, and these have been
identified as jacks A, B, and C. He also testified that jack No.
2, which is the mddle jack of three tenporary jacks, was al so
installed at the time he viewed the area in question. Jack No. 2
was i nby the row of permanent roof bolts which had been
installed. |Inspector Shade was concerned over the fact that two
m ners proceeded inby jack No. 2 to sinultaneously install two
addi ti onal jacks, which have been identified as Nos. 4 and 6. In
the inspector's view, when this was done, the mners who were
installing those jacks were under unsupported roof.

After careful review and consideration of all of the
evi dence and testinony adduced in this case, | cannot concl ude
that the petitioner has established by a preponderance of the
evi dence that the respondent violated its roof control plan. Wth
respect to the question as to whether the two mners who started
to install the two roof jacks in question were under unsupported

roof, I can only conclude that the mner who intended to instal
roof jack No. 6 would have been under unsupported roof. I|nsofar
as the other mner was concerned, | conclude that the rib jacks

and per manent roof supports provided himanple protection when he
ventured out into the entry to install roof jack No. 4. As for
the m ner who wal ked out with the intent to install roof jack No.
6, while he was protected on the diagonal by roof jack No. 2, he
was not protected by any roof support outby and towards the

per manent supports, nor was he protected by any roof support
laterally. Accordingly, to that extent he was in fact under
unsupport ed
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roof, and it is on that basis that | affirmthe citation. In
short, | conclude and find that one of the two m ners who
simul taneously installed the two jacks in question within the
vi ew of the inspector, was under unsupported roof. Under the
circunstances, this was a violation of section 75.200, and to
that extent the citation |'S AFFI RVED.

Docket No. PENN 83-128

Section 104(a) "S & S" Citation No. 2103081, charges that a
Kersey battery-powered scoop was not maintained in a permssible
condition in that an opening in excess of .005 inches (plane
flange joint), was present in the |lower right hand corner of the
contactor conpartnent |ocated in the operator's conpartnent. The
i nspector cited a violation of mandatory safety standard 30 CFR
75.503.

MSHA | nspector Ckey H Wl fe confirmed that he issued the
violation in question, and expl ai ned why he did so (Tr. 511-516).
He indicated that he found an openi ng between the cover and the
contactor conpartnent of the scoop in question, and that the
openi ng was .005, as neasured by a feeler guage, and the
allowable Iimt is .004 (Tr. 517). He described the batteries on
the scoop as 240 volt DC, and he believed that the hazard
presented by the violation was that the opening could be an
ignition source for nethane. He took nethane readi ngs, and
detected none present (Tr. 520). He did confirmthat the mne is
on a "301(i) spot inspection status,"™ which indicates that it
liberates nore than one million cubic feet of nmethane in a
24-hour period (Tr. 520). He explained the purpose of the
permssibility requirenments of the cited standard as follows (Tr.
520-522):

Q M. Wlfe, what is the purpose of the permssibility
regul ati ons providing that there be an openi ng no
greater than .004 inches?

A. Well, the idea of that is that these expl osi on-proof
encl osures, none of themare air tight, and when a

pi ece of equipnment is in operation, it tends to warm
up, which causes expansion of the air that's in the
conpartnment, and therefore when it cools, it has a
tendency to pull whatever atnosphere it happens to be
in back into the conpartnment, and shoul d that

at nosphere contain an expl osion m xture of nethane, the
i dea of opening it is to provide a flanme path, so that

i f nethane were drawn back into the
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conmpartnment during the cooling stage and ignited by
the arcing and sparking inside that compartnent, that
it would prevent it fromgetting to the outside
at nosphere. It would be cooled sufficiently that it
woul d not ignite nmethane once it exited the boss
or encl osure.

Q Now, is that purpose served where you have an
opening in excess of .005 inches?

A No, it is not.

Q What woul d happen if methane were drawn into this
pi ece of equipnent as it exited when you issued the
Ctation?

A In all likelihood, if once it was ignited within
that compartment, it would escape to the outside
at nosphere.

Q Do you know whether or not there have ever been any
excessi ve net hane accunul ati ons at Maple Creek No. 1?

A. There have been 107(a) orders issued for nethane in
excess of 1.5.

Q What type of injury would result in the event of an
expl osion or a fire occurring as a result of this
vi ol ati on?

A Well, the injuries that could result of a nethane
expl osi on woul d be concussi on, burns, asphyxiation

On cross-exam nation, M. Wlfe denied that at the tinme he
i ssued the citation in question he was instructed that al
perm ssibility violations should be considered as "significant
and substantial™ (Tr. 524). He explained his instructions in
determ ning whether a violation was "S & S" or not, and he
confirnmed that at the tinme he issued the citation, he detected no
met hane in the area, there was adequate ventilation, and the
scoop in question was three crosscuts outby the [ ast open
crosscut (Tr. 524-526). He conceded that there is a state | aw
requiring a nethane check at the face before any electrica
equi prent is taken there (Tr. 527).

M. Wl fe could not state whether anyone ever intended to
use the scoop at the face on the day that he cited it,
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but he did indicate that the scoops are normally used "to cl ean
up and carry supplies around” (Tr. 529). He could not state how
Il ong a scoop would nornmally spend in the face area, and he has
observed a scoop in operation during the entire cleanup cycle
(Tr. 530).

M. Wlfe could not state how the opening in question was
created, and he confirned that abatenment was achi eved by nerely
tightening up the bolt. He confirmed that the equi pment in
guestion shoul d be exam ned weekly, but he had no way of know ng
how | ong the condition existed, and he had no reason to believe
that the condition woul d not have been corrected during the next
weekly exam nation (Tr. 531).

M. Wlfe stated that anytinme there is mning in the
Pittsburgh coal seam there is a definite possibility that
nmet hane will be encountered, and he confirnmed that the mine in
guestion has only experienced face ignitions which did not result
in any personal injuries or damage to property (Tr. 532). He
further expl ained his concerns as follows (Tr. 533-534).

Q Now, didn't you testify that the ventilation on this
section was perfectly adequate?

A. Yes, nma'am

Q Did you have any reason to believe this scoop was
goi ng anywhere but this particular section?

A. No.

Q So, what led you to believe that there was going to
be an accunul ation of methane to the 5 to 15 percent
range on this section?

A. Well, nethane can accunul ate. There are a | ot of
reasons why nethane can accunulate. | nean, at the tine
| was there, everything was fine as far as the
ventil ati on was concerned and so on and so forth, but |
don't know what is going to happen in the next hour or
the next day or the next week.

Q Did you have any opinion as to what period of tine
it would take for this occurrence to take place?

A. No, | did not.
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Q Did you have any opinion as to how likely it was
to happen before the next weekly electrical exam nation?

A. No.

Q If you considered the factors that were present when
you exam ned the scoop and consi dered the history of
the m ne and assuned that the condition would be
corrected at the next permissibility exam nation, would
you consider this violation to be significant and
substantial ?

A. Those are not ny instructions. | do not consider
just that m ne.

VWhen asked why he believed the scoop woul d be used inby the
| ast open crosscut, M. Wlfe replied that it was standard
procedure in the mne to use such scoops for cleaning up the face
areas and the returns, and his "guess" was that it was |ast used
on the idle shift or on the I ast production shift, possibly to
carry supplies to the face (Tr. 542-543).

Respondent' s Testi nony

Joseph Ritz, ventilation foreman, testified as to his
responsibilities, and they include the exam nation of air
courses, bl eeders, and nethane exami nations in the returns. He
confirmed that he has 13 years of mning experience, holds a
degree in mning fromPenn State University, and has been an
active nenber of the mine rescue teamfor several years (Tr.
546) .

M. Rtz stated that he was famliar with the m ne
ventilation plan, and he described the amount of air induced into
the m ne ventilation system and the anmount of methane taken out
(Tr. 547). Since 1974, he could recall only one nethane face
ignition at the Maple Creek No. 1 Mne, and he described it as a
frictional ignition where a mner cutting coal ignited a pocket
of methane, and he indicated "it flashed and was out probably
about as quick as it happened" (Tr. 548). He was of the opinion
that the chances of a scoop igniting any nethane, with the
openi ng descri bed, was renote (Tr. 548). He could recall no
section 107(a) orders ever being issued at the mne for excessive
accunul ati ons of nethane (Tr. 549).

On cross-exam nation, M. Ritz agreed that mne ventilation
can be interrupted and there was no "guarantee" that this wll
not happen (Tr. 551). However, he explained the
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various safeguards and systens in effect at the mne to indicate
when ventilation is interrupted. He stated that the mne in
qguestion liberated under a mllion cubic feet of nethane per
24-hours, but that this will vary as conditions change (Tr.
553-556) .

VWhen asked whet her he had any doubts as to whether or not
the scoop in question would be used inby the | ast open crosscut,
M. Rtz stated that the use of the scoop varies, and that he had
no way to determ ne whether it would be used on the next shift,
or whether it was used on the previous shift. He was only sure
that it was used on the shift when it was observed by the
i nspector (Tr. 558). Although he denied that the scoop is used
primarily inby the |ast open crosscut, he conceded that it is so
used at tines for cleanup, and that it is also used to hau
supplies outby (Tr. 559). He did confirmthat on the day of the
i nspection, the mne was active, and that the cited scoop was the
only scoop available for cleaning up at the face area (Tr. 560).
He al so agreed that the scoop had not been "tagged out™ (Tr.

561).

VWhen asked his view on the opening found in the equi prent by
the inspector, M. Rtz agreed that it was not wise to | eave the
condi tion uncorrected, that he would insure that it was fixed if
he found the condition, and he conceded that in any
permssibility violation, "Mirphy's Law' applies. He explai ned by
stating that "if it can happen, it will happen” (Tr. 565).

After careful consideration of all of the testinony and
evi dence adduced here, | conclude and find that the petitioner
has established a violation by a preponderance of the evidence.
Mandat ory safety standard section 75.503, requires that all
el ectric face equi pnent taken or used inby the |ast open crosscut
be maintained in a perm ssible condition. Here, the respondent
does not dispute the fact that the cited piece of equi pment was
not mai ntained pernmissible. As for the question of whether or not
it was "used or intended to be used inby the |ast open crosscut,"”
I conclude and find that the petitioner has established that this
was the case. Respondent's own witness (Ritz), admitted that the
scoop was, in the normal course of business, used inby the |ast
open crosscut, and that it was the only scoop available to
perform cl eanup of the face areas. Absent any evidence to the
contrary, | conclude and find that the preponderance of the
evi dence establishes that the scoop in question "was used or
i ntended to be used inby the | ast open crosscut."” Under the
circunstances, Citation No. 2103081 | S AFFI RVED
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Docket No. PENN 83-137

In this case, MSHA Inspector Francis E. Wehr issued a
section 104(a), "S & S" citation on Decenber 14, 1982, citing a
vi ol ati on of mandatory safety standard 30 CFR 75.1003. The
condition or practice cited is as follows:

Adequat e guardi ng was not provided for the energized
trolley wire and trolley feeder, at the 37 crossover
switch off C track haul age road. The guards on the
i nsi de were knocked down and |ying on the mne floor on
B track haul age.

I nspect or Wehr confirned that he issued the citation in
qguestion after finding that the overhead energized trolley wire
at the Ctrack cross-over switch was i nadequately guarded. He
stated that the guardi ng had been knocked off, and that he found
it lying on the mne floor. The guardi ng was m ssing along a
si x-foot area which he described as the "V' intersection, at the
poi nt where the C track haul age and a cross-over fromthe B track
haul age intersected. He identified exhibit P-1 as a copy of the
citation, and the second page is a copy of his notes, including a
rough sketch of the cited location (Tr. 319-329).

M. Wehr stated that the trolley wire was approxi mately five
and one-half to six feet off the floor, and that it was a
550-volt DC wire. He confirmed that abatenent was tinmely achi eved
by re-installing the section of guarding which was not in place.
He al so confirmed that the trolley wire guardi ng has been a
problemin the mne in that it is often knocked off by the
trolley "harps,” particularly at the track switch-over |ocations.
He al so indicated that m ne nanagenent is aware of the problem
and nakes an effort to constantly keep after the work force to be
alert to the problem

M. Wehr indicated that his principal concern was that the
| oconotive or mantrip operators who regul arly passed under the
wire would cone in contact with the unguarded wire. If they did,
it was his opinion that it was reasonably likely that a serious
injury would occur. He confirmed that he was aware of the fact
that past accidents or fatalities have occurred in the mning
i ndustry when miners cane in contact with unguarded trolley wres
simlar to those which he cited in this case. Al though he could
not document any recent accidents at the mne, he did indicate
t hat he had
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heard that soneone had recently cone in contact with a trolley
wire at the mne, but he had no specific details about the

i nci dent .

M. Wehr described the different types of vehicle
conveyances whi ch used the track haul age, and he believed that it
was possible for a mner operating this equi pnent to cone in
contact with the overhead wire while in the equi pment. Although
he conceded that he did indicate on the face of his citation that
only one person would be affected by the conditions he cited, he
enphasi zed that under certain circunstances other persons would
be in the area where he found the unguarded trolley wire, and he
identified themas forenen, conpany inspectors, and punpers (Tr.
333-334).

M. Wehr did not know how | ong the guardi ng had been down,
and he stated that he checked the pre-shift books but found no
notations that the guard was down. He al so indicated that guards
do get knocked down when a power pole junps off the wire (Tr.
337).

On cross-exam nation, M. Wehr conceded that trolley
guarding is a mne maintenance itemand that it is not physically
possible to keep up with it all the time (Tr. 342). He confirnmed
that at the Maple Creek No. 2 Mne, two nen are regularly
assigned to replace trolley guarding that has been knocked down
(Tr. 346). He al so conceded that persons riding a | oconotive wear
protective hats, and that these hats provide electrica
protection (Tr. 351).

Respondent' s Testi nony

Paul Gaydos, construction foreman, testified that in his
opinion, while it was possible that soneone could be injured
because the trolley guard board was down, it was not probable. He
indicated that a small area of wi re was unguarded, and that
t hrough training, safety neetings, and inspections, everyone is
made aware of these situations (Tr. 354-356). M. CGaydos
identified the types of equi pmrent which woul d pass under the
wire, and he indicated that he was six-foot-three and had often
passed under the wire, but has not come very close to it (Tr.
357). He conceded that if one were in the |argest piece of
equi prent, a 54-ton | oconotive, his head may be 5 1/2 feet off
the ground | evel (Tr. 358).

M. CGaydos stated that it is very unlikely that a power pole
woul d cone off the trolley wire at the crossing chute
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| ocation in question, and this is because one is not noving fast.
If the pole does cone off, one could stop the vehicle and
retrieve the pole (Tr. 359). He indicated that the mne nust be
pre-shifted three hours preceding the next operating shift, and
that this includes the trolley wire guards (Tr. 359-360). He
could not renenber how | ong the guard in question was down (Tr.
361). M. Gaydos could not state how serious an injury would
result if one were to sinply brush the wire, but conceded that he
"respects it," and would not like to back into it (Tr. 364).

On cross-exam nation, M. Gaydos confirmed that short of
someone comm tting suicide by intentionally grabbing the wire, he
could not imagi ne anyone suffering fatal injuries while riding in
a piece of equipnment under the wire. He stated that it was his
practice to duck his head while approaching an overhead wire, and
he woul d expect that an experienced notornman would do the sanme
(Tr. 365-366). He conceded that it was possible that the guards
were knocked off by a pole conming off the wire, and he confirnmed
that under State law the trolley guard boards extend two inches
bel ow the wire (Tr. 370).

After carefuly consideration of all of the testi nony and
evi dence adduced here, | conclude and find that the petitioner
has established by a preponderance of the evidence that the
guarding for the cited energized trolley wire at the location in
guesti on was i nadequate, and that this constitutes a violation of
section 75.1003. Accordingly, Ctation No. 2102681 IS AFFI RVED

PENN 83- 136

MSHA | nspector Ckey H Wl fe confirmed that he issued
Citation No. 2103084, on February 8, 1983, for a permssibility
violation on a Fletcher roof bolter after finding that one of the
bolts which secured the lid to the main contactor conpartnent was
mssing (Tr. 579). The function of the conpartnent is to
di stribute power to various parts of the machine after it comes
in fromthe power source. He believed the nmine was active the day
the citation issued, and the bolter was required to be maintained
in permssible condition. Al bolts nust be in place so as to
precl ude nmethane fromentering the conpartnment or to confine any
nmet hane ignition inside the conpartnent (Tr. 581).

The parties agreed to incorporate by reference M. Wl fe's
prior testinmony concerning the nethane |iberation history of
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the mne, as well as his rationale for finding that the violation
was significant and substantial (Tr. 582). M. Wl fe was sure
that the roof bolter was used inby the |ast open crosscut and
that it was the only one available on the section (Tr. 583).

The parties agreed to proffer the testinmony of M. Joseph
Ritz on behal f of the respondent, and that if called he would
testify that the cited roof bolter was parked two bl ocks outby
the | ast open crosscut, there was no opening in the contactor
conpartnment, the section was wet and well rock dusted, the
ventil ation was good, and there was no nethane detected anywhere
in the section (Tr. 592-593). Petitioner's counsel added that she
woul d ask the witness to confirmthat interruptions to the
ventilation are always possible (Tr. 593).

VWile it may be true that the roof bolter was parked at the
time it was cited by Inspector Wlfe, | find his testinony that
it was used on the section for roof bolting to be credible.
Respondent has offered no testinony or evidence to the contrary,
nor has the respondent rebutted the fact that the m ssing bolt on
the contactor panel was a permissibility violation. | concl ude
and find that the petitioner has established the fact of
violation, and G tation No. 2103084 | S AFFI RVED

I nspector Wl fe confirmed that he issued Citation No.
2103085 on February 8, 1983, citing a violation of section 75.606
after observing a shuttle car run over its own trailing cable
(Tr. 594-595). The car was in operation and was com ng off the
| oadi ng point, and it ran over the cable one tinme. The cable is a
440-volt AC cable, and M. Wl fe issued the citation to M. Rtz
as soon as he observed the car run over the cable.

M. Wlfe stated that the power was reduced, and the cable
was i nspected for damage. However, no visible damage to the cable
or to the outer insulation was found (Tr. 596). M. Wlfe stated
that the danger presented was a possible fire hazard due to cable
damage not readily observable, and a possible shock hazard. He
i ndicated that the cable is handled fromtine to tine, and while
he could not recall whether the area was wet, but he believed
that the area was "normally pretty wet"” (Tr. 597). Hi s concern
for a fire hazard stenmed fromthe fact that if there were
i nternal cable damage, two | eads coul d cone together which would
cause the cable to "blow," and that while AC cables are
protected, "you would still have a nomentary flash that woul d be
pretty hot" (Tr. 598).
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M. Wlfe believed that cable damage will result froma heavy
machi ne running over it, and that "if it would continue, it is
definitely going to cause damage to it eventually" (Tr. 598). He
admtted that when he operated a shuttle car, there were tines
when he ran over his own cable, and nornally, an operator can
observe when this happens (Tr. 600). In the instant case, he had
no way of knowi ng whet her the operator had run over the cable
prior to his observing it, nor did he know that the nachine
operator was even aware that he had run over his cable (Tr. 601).

M. Wlfe stated conceded that he was nore concerned with a
fire hazard rather than a shock hazard, and if a fire occurred,
m ners under ground woul d be exposed to snoke inhal ati on and burn
hazards. Al so, toxic funes could be given off fromthe burning
i nsul ati on or neoprene cable jackets. He was aware of a previous
fire in another m ne caused by cabl e damage. A short circuit
occurred in the cable, and when it was reeled up, it caught the
car on fire. However, he did not know whether the short circuit
was caused by the car running over the cable, and it was possible
that the cable was damaged by fallen rock. The resulting fire
filled the section with snmoke (Tr. 603-605).

On cross-exam nation, M. Wl fe conceded that it "could well
be possible” that the incident in question was a "freak accident”
in that the cable got caught between the cable conpartnent lid
and the side of the shuttle car, and that "perhaps" the operator
did not realize what had occurred (Tr. 605). He al so conceded
that he permitted the car to continue in operation after the
cable was inspected, and that it was not taken out of service
(Tr. 606).

Respondent' s Testi nony

Joseph Ritz testified as to the circunstances surroundi ng

the shuttle car operator's cutting of his own trailing cable. He
stated that it happened when the car operator slowy drifted off
the | oadi ng ranp whil e backing up and he and the inspector were
st andi ng nearby observing him (Tr. 633). M. Rtz indicated that
the operator "drifted back” and the cable did not "pick up" on
the reel because the hydraulic notor did not engage, and as a
result "he just ran onto the cable"” (Tr. 633). M. Rtz believed
that the operator was aware of the presence of the inspector, and
sinmply did not pay close attention to what he was doing (Tr.
634). M. Rtz imediately de-energi zed the machi ne, and he, the
i nspector, and the section nmechanic, visually inspected the cable
and found no visible damage. The power was put on again, and the
shuttle car was put back in service (Tr. 635).
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M. Rtz was of the opinion that there was no problemw th the
cabl e, and he personally has never observed a fire on an AC cable
such as the one in question. Once the cable is put in service, he
does not believe that anyone would handle it, and he did not
under stand why the inspector issued the citation (Tr. 688). The
operator was adnoni shed to watch out for his cable, and he
continued operating the car after the cable was inspected (Tr.
639). M. Rtz stated that the section was wet (Tr. 631). He al so
i ndicated that had there been any critical damage to the interior
of the cable the ground fault systemwould likely "kick out the
power" and de-energi zed the cable (Tr. 643).

Respondent does not dispute the fact that the cited shuttle
car ran over its own trailing cable. Petitioner affirmed that the
theory of its case lies in the fact that the cited standard
requires that trailing cables be adequately protected to prevent
damage by nobil e equipnent (Tr. 646). Further, petitioner's
counsel was of the view that the manner in which the car operator
was operating the shuttle car at the tine the inspector observed
himrun over the cable constituted the gist of the violation (Tr.
647, 651). As concisely stated by counsel, "the cable is supposed
to be protected from damage. Wen you run over it, it is not
protected from damage" (Tr. 651).

Mandat ory safety standard section 75.607 requires that
trailing cables be adequately protected to prevent danage by
nmobi | e equi pnent. In the instant case, it seens clear to ne that
the trailing cable in question was in fact run over by the
shuttl e car operator as he drifted back off the | oading station
in question. Since this happened in the full view of the NMSHA
i nspector who was standing nearby with a conpany foreman, the
i nspector imediately informed the foreman that he was issuing a
citation, the machi ne was de-energi zed, and the cable was
visually inspected for damage. Since no danage to the exterior of
the cabl e was detected, the inspector permtted the shuttle car
to continue operating and "abatenent” was achi eved by nerely
i nstructing the machi ne operator to be nore careful and to
observe his cable.

The inspector here conceded that "it was possible" that the
i ncident was a "freak" occurrence. As a matter of fact, during
his testinmony, he had no recollection as to how the incident
occurred. Further, there is no evidence to suggest that the cable
reel was defective, and al though the inspector testified that it
was not an unusual occurrence for a trailing
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cable to "catch" between the cable conpartnent |lid and the side
of the shuttle car, he took no action to insure that this would
not occur again. It seens to nme that if this type of "cable
hang- up” occurs frequently, the inspector should have required
the respondent to take some preventive measures to insure that
the cabl e was protected agai nst any such future "hang-ups." In
short, he required no physical alterations to the machine or to
the cabl e-reeling device to i nsure agai nst other cable
"hang-ups." As a matter of fact, when asked this precise
guestion, the inspector responded that "I honestly don't
remenmber™ (Tr. 611).

After careful consideration of the record in this case, |
cannot concl ude that the running over of the cable in question
was ot her than an isolated one-tinme occurrence. Further, based on
the testi nony and evi dence of record, | cannot conclude that the
incident resulted froma failure by the respondent to insure that
t he cabl e was adequately protected agai nst danage. Aside fromthe
fact that the petitioner has not established that the cable was
damaged, there is no credible evidence to establish that apart
fromthe operator's inattention or failure to prevent the nachi ne
fromdrifting, there is no evidence that the respondent here
failed to provide adequate protection to prevent damage to the
cable. Further, there is absolutely no evidence that this
respondent has a history of running over trailing cables, and
there is no evidence to support any concl usion that the nachi ne
operator has done this in the past.

I nspector Wl fe was asked to explain what could have caused
the cable to catch on the machine conpartnment. His initial
response was that he had no notes on the incident (Tr. 623).

Al t hough he specul ated that the incident may have occurred due to
the | ack of proper tension on the cable, he could not support
this "theory," even though it happened right before his very
eyes. As a matter of fact, he candidly adnmtted that he coul dn't
state precisely what caused the "hang-up,"” other than the nachi ne
"drifting” (Tr. 624). \Wen asked whet her he spoke with the
machi ne operator, the inspector stated that "I don't remenber”
(Tr. 626). The nmachi ne operator was not called to testify by

ei ther side.

After careful review and consideration of all of the
evi dence and testinmony adduced here, | conclude and find that the
cable incident in question was a one-tinme inadvertent incident,
and that the petitioner has failed to establish that the
respondent failed to provide adequate protection to insure
agai nst cabl e damage. Accordingly, G tation No. 2103085 IS
VACATED.
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Negl i gence and Gravity Findings and Concl usi ons

PENN 83- 121
Negl i gence

I find that the respondent should have been aware of the
fact that the cited shelter hole was obstructed with oil druns
and rock dust bags as noted by the inspector. A preshift
exam nati on shoul d have detected these conditions, and the
failure by the respondent to take the corrective action in
advance of the inspector's arrival on the scene was due to a | ack
of reasonable care. Accordingly, | find that violation No.
2102696 resulted from ordi nary negligence.

Gavity

The inspector testified that the shelter hole was 17 feet
wi de and there was room for a person to manuever in and out.
MSHA' s counsel pointed out that there was only one person in the
area and that the chances of his having to use the shelter were
slim Under all of these circunstances, | find that this
viol ati on was nonseri ous.

PENN 83- 129
Negl i gence

I nspect or Shade was of the opinion that Ctation No. 2102605
resulted from noderate negligence, and he stated that m ne
managenment usual ly guarded the overhead wires as soon as possible
after that particular condition is brought to its attention
However, he did not know whether the guards were down at the tinme
of the preshift exam nation (Tr. 24).

I find that G tation No. 2102605 resulted fromthe
respondent's failure to take reasonable care to insure that the
overhead troll ey guards which were down were pronptly di scovered
and the condition corrected before the inspector arrived on the
scene. | conclude that the violation resulted fromordi nary
negl i gence.

Wth regard to Gitation No. 2102619, the testinony and
evi dence presented by MSHA and the respondent is not in dispute.
VWile it is true that the required anount of air was not reaching
the end of the line curtain at the tine the citation was issued,
the facts show that the foreman in charge of m ning was aware of
the problemand was in the process of taking corrective action
whil e the inspector was on the section. In
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the circunstances, | believe that the foreman was taking
reasonabl e steps to correct the problemand that the violation
did not result from any negligence on the part of the respondent.

Wth regard to Citation No. 2102609, | conclude and find
that the violation resulted fromthe respondent's |ack of
reasonabl e care to insure that the mner who was under
unsupported roof was aware of that fact, and was aware of the
provi sions of the roof control plan. Wiile | have commented t hat
the roof control plan is rather confusing, it is the respondent’'s
responsibility to insure that mners are aware of the plan
provisions, particularly that portion which prohibits anyone from
wal ki ng out under unsupported roof. | find that the violation
resulted fromordi nary negligence.

Wth regard to Gitation No. 2102611 concerning the energi zed
[ight power wires which the inspector found were not properly
hung, the respondent shoul d have been aware of the cited standard
prohibiting the wires fromcomng into contact with conmbusti bl es.
I find that the violation resulted fromthe respondent’'s failure
to exerci se reasonable care, and that this constitutes ordinary
negl i gence.

I conclude and find that all of the violations which have
been affirmed in this docket were serious. In each instance,
except possibly for the two permssibility citations (2102608 and
2102618), where the inspector found that the lighting circuits on
the cited machines were "intrinsicly safe,” the inspector found a
hazard associated with each of the cited conditions (Tr. 38-41;
120). Wiile it may be true that the permissibility standards in
qguestion are specifically intended to guard agai nst | oss of
illumnation, as | observed during the hearing, the m ssing bolt
brackets in question could have caused the light fixtures to fal
on the operators of the equipnment in question while it was
tramm ng, and in this event they would probably sustain injuries
(Tr. 286-309). Under these circunstances, | conclude that these
two citations were al so serious.

PENN 83-128
Negl i gence

I find that G tation No. 2103081 resulted fromthe
respondent's failure to take reasonable care to insure that the
opening in the battery powered scoop was di scovered and
corrected. Accordingly, | conclude that this permssibility
violation resulted fromordi nary negligence by the respondent.
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Gavity

Respondent's ventilation foreman conceded that nine
ventilation could be interrupted, that nethane is liberated in
the m ne, and that the opening found in the scoop contactor
conpartnment is a condition which should have been attended to. He
al so conceded that in any permssibility violation of this kind,
"Murphy's Law' woul d apply. Accordingly, |I find that this
violati on was serious.

PENN 83- 136
Negl i gence

I find that G tation No. 2103084 resulted fromthe
respondent's failure to take reasonable care to insure that the
m ssing bolt fromthe contactor conpartnment of the cited roof
bolter was di scovered and corrected. A pre-operational check
shoul d have di scovered the missing bolt. | find that the
violation resulted fromordi nary negli gence.

Gavity

For the sanme reasons that | found G tation No. 2103081 to be
serious in PENN 83-128, | find the violation here is also
serious. Wiile it is true here that the section nmay have been wet
and wel |l rock dusted, and no nethane was detected, the m ssing
bolt which caused the permissibility violation presented a hazard
of possible arcing and sparking in the contactor conpartnent when
t he machi ne was in operation

PENN 83- 137
Negl i gence

I nspector Wehr stated that the violation resulted froma
noder at e degree of negligence, and he indicated that he has
spoken with m ne managenent about the trolley wire guards so that
they may institute a program of pronpt reporting of the
situation. | conclude and find that the violation resulted from
the respondent's failure to exerci se reasonable care, and that
this constitutes ordi nary negligence.

Gavity

The mssing trolley wire guards in question presented a
possi bl e shock hazard in an area where miners and equi pnent woul d
have been present during the ordinary course of business.
Accordingly, | conclude and find that this violation was serious.
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Si ze of Business and Effect of Cvil Penalties on the
Respondent's Ability to Continue in Business

The parties stipulated that the respondent is a large mne
operator and that the proposed civil penalties will not adversely
affect its ability to remain in business. | adopt these
stipulations as ny findings on these issues, and | further
conclude that the penalties which | have assessed will not
adversely affect the respondent’'s business.

H story of Prior Violations

Exhibit P-9 is a conmputer print-out summarizing the nunber
of violations assessed and paid by the respondent for violations
i ssued at the Maple Creek No. 2 Mne for the period Decenber 1
1980 to Novenber 30, 1982. The print-out also reflects the nunber
of assessed and paid violations before Decenber 1, 1980. The
information on the printout is summari zed by reference to the
speci fic mandatory health and safety standard viol ated, rather
than by any specific violation nunber. The printout reflects that
for the two-year period noted, the respondent paid $81,036 in
civil penalties for 485 violations. Fifty-two of the violations
were for violations of mandatory standard section 75.200 (roof
control), 48 were for violations of section 75.400 (accunul ati ons
of combustibles), and 81 were for violations of section 75.503
(permssible electric fact equi prment).

Exhi bit P-10 is a conputer printout summarizing the nunber
of assessed and paid violations at the respondent's Maple Creek
No. 1 Mne for the sanme tine periods noted above for the No. 2
M ne. The information reflects that for the period Decenber 1
1980 to Novenber 30, 1982, the respondent paid $82,571 for 435
violations. Forty-three citations were for violations of section
75.200, 41 for violations of section 75.400, and 52 were for
violations of section 75.503.

VWile | take note of the fact that the conmputer printout
information for the violations issued at the No. 1 and No. 2
M nes prior to Decenber 1, 1980, reflect that nost of themwere
for violations of section 75.200, 75.400, and 75.503, absent any
specific tine frames or details concerning the listed violations,
I amunable to conclude that this prior history reflects a good
or poor conpliance record by the respondent. G ven the size of
the respondent's business, its conpliance record for the periods
Decenber 1, 1980 to Novenber 30, 1982, insofar as the bulk of the
standards noted are concerned does not appear to indicate a
significantly poor record. However, | do take note of the nunber
of permissibility and roof control violations and have taken this
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into account in the civil penalties assessed by ne for the
viol ations which | have affirned in these proceedi ngs.

Good Faith Conpliance

The testinony and evi dence adduced in all of these
proceedi ngs reflects that all of the cited violations were tinmely
abated by the respondent in good faith. Accordingly, | have taken
this into consideration in the assessnent of the civil penalties
for the viol ations which have been affirmed (Tr. 340; 497-499;
522-523).

"Single Penalty" Assessment Argunents

During the course of the hearing, respondent's counse
argued that in those instances where a "significant and
substantial" finding is rejected by the judge, a $20 civil
penal ty must be assessed by the judge. As an exanpl e,
respondent's counsel argued that had MSHA' s district manager not
been following a policy that all permissibility violations are
"significant and substantial,"” Ctation No. 2102608 woul d have
been assessed as a "single penalty" of $20 (Tr. 82). Counse
argued that since the "S & S" finding has been w t hdrawn, the
civil penalty should "autonatically" be assessed at $20, and that
I must give deference to the Labor Departnent's regul ations for
assessi ng such penalties (Tr. 87-89).

Section 110(i) of the Act specifically authorizes the
Conmi ssion to assess all civil nmonetary penalties provided in the
Act. Section 110(i) mandates that in assessing these penalties,
t he Conmi ssion shall consider the six statutory criteria set
forth in that section. Wiile the | ast sentence of section 110(i)
vests discretion in the Secretary of Labor to propose civil
penal ti es based upon "a sunmary review of the information
avail able to him" and does not require himto make findings of
fact concerning the six statutory criteria, this discretion does
not apply to the Commi ssion, nor is it controlling in cases
docket ed before the Conm ssion and adj udi cated by its judges.

In any contested civil penalty case, including "single
penal ty" assessnents, the Conm ssion and its judges apply the six
statutory criteria, and in exercising their respective
i ndependent adj udi catory authority, may do so without
consi deration of the Secretary's Part 100 regul ati ons.

MSHA' s revised Part 100 procedures for proposing civil
penal ti es under the Act becane effective on May 21, 1982,
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47 Fed. Reg. 22286-22297. In the explanatory di scussions
concerning the Secretary's creation of the "$20 single penalty"
concept as pronul gated under 30 C.F.R 100.4, the follow ng
statenments appear at 57 Fed. Reg. 22291

This is a new section. It provides for the assessnent
of a $20 single penalty for violations which are not
reasonably likely to result in reasonably serious
injury or illness. Single penalty violations which are
paid in a tinely manner will not be included in the
operator's history (enphasis added). * * * Under this
proposal, this section was designated as the "m ni mum
penal ty" assessnent procedure. In the final rule, NMSHA
has substituted the term"single penalty assessnment” to
clarify that $20 is the only penalty an operator could
recei ve under this section (enphasis added).

As proposed, this section provided for the assessnent
of a fixed single penalty of $20 for violations
involving low |l evel gravity and no negligence (enphasis
added). In the notice of public hearing, MSHA included
a refinement of the proposed single penalty provision
whi ch woul d apply the single penalty to those
vi ol ati ons which are not reasonably likely to result in
a reasonably serious injury or illness.

In promul gati ng and adopting the "single penalty” final rule
now found in section 100.4, an assessnment of $20 may be i nposed
by MSHA as a civil penalty where the violation is not reasonably
likely to result in a reasonably serious injury or illness, and
is abated within the tine fixed by the inspector. If the
violation is not abated within the tine fixed by the inspector
the violation is not eligible for the $20 single penalty
assessnent. Thus, it appears that the only requirenments for the
"autonmatic" assessnment of a $20 penalty is that the violation be
one which is not reasonably likely to result in a reasonably
serious injury or illness, and that the violation is tinely
abated within the tinme fixed by the inspector. It would further
appear that the prior proposed additional finding of no
negl i gence as a condition precedent for such a $20 assessnment has
been del eted from section 100.4. Thus, even if an inspector were
to find that there was negligence, regardl ess of the degree, the
violation would still be assessed an autonmatic $20, as long as
the two el enents noted above were present (non S & S and tinely
abat ement ) .
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The Secretary's rationale for apparently del eting any
consi derati on of negligence by the operator is found at the
foll owi ng di scussi on which appears at 47 Fed. Reg. 22292:

* * * when the gravity factor is | ow and good faith

i s established through abatenent, MSHA does not believe
that an individualized anal ysis of the negligence, size
and history criteria is appropriate or necessary.

Thus, in any given case where a violation qualifies for a
$20 single penalty assessnment, even if the inspector finds that
the violation resulted fromgross negligence, which is defined as
"conduct which exhibits the absence of the slightest degree of
care," the penalty will still result in an automatic $20
assessnment by MSHA, even though the standard of care established
under the Act inposes on an operator a responsibility for a high
degree of care

MSHA' s pronul gati on and application of the single-penalty
provision found in section 100.4, totally negates and ignores the
statutory criteria of negligence and history of prior violations.
Theoretically, a mne operator who has paid any nunber of "non-S
& S" violations which resulted from gross negligence, could
continue doing so with inpunity, as long as they are tinmely
abat ed.

Respondent's argunments that | am bound by MSHA' s "single
penal ty" assessnent regul ations are rejected. See: Secretary of
Labor v. United States Steel Mning Co., PENN 82-328, decided My
31, 1984.

"Significant and Substantial " Argunents

In Secretary of Labor v. Cement Division, National Gypsum
Co., 3 FMBHRC 822 (April 1981), the Conmi ssion held that a
violation of a mandatory safety or health standard significantly
and substantially contributes to the cause and effect of a nine
safety or health hazard when "there exists a reasonabl e
i kelihood that the hazard contributed to will result in an
injury or illness of a reasonably serious nature,” 3 FMSHRC at
825.

In National Gypsum the Conm ssion noted that the Act does
not define the term"hazard," and it construed the termto
"denote a nmeasure of danger to safety or health,” 3 FMSHRC at
827. The Commission also stated that a violation " "significantly
and substantially' contributes to the cause and effect
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of a hazard if the violation could be a major cause of a danger
to safety or health. In other words, the contribution to cause
and effect must be significant and substantial ."

In Mathies Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC, PENN 82-3-R, etc. (January 6,
1984), the Conmi ssion noted that in order to establish that a
violation of a mandatory safety standard is significant and
substantial under National Gypsum the Secretary of Labor nust
prove:

(1) the underlying violation of a mandatory safety
st andar d;

(2) a discrete safety hazard--that is, a neasure of
danger to safety--contributed to by the violation

(3) a reasonable likelihood that the hazard contri buted
towill result in injury;

(4) a reasonable likelihood that the injury in question
will be of a reasonably serious nature.

During its rul enaking on the revised regulatory criteria
used by MSHA for proposed assessnents of civil penalties, the
rul emakers made the followi ng statements with respect to the
application of the term"significant and substantial"

MSHA does not believe that further specific | anguage
governi ng the inspector's eval uation of hazardous
conditions should be incorporated into the final rule.
* * * MBHA will carefully reviewits policy for

uni form application and consistency with this

rul emaki ng (47 Fed.Reg. 22292, May 21, 1982).

Respondent' s counsel asserted that MSHA's District Ofice
has acted arbitrary in applying an interpretation of the term
"significant and substantial"™ which goes far beyond the
Conmission's definition of that termas it was articulated in
Secretary of Labor v. Cenent Division, National Gypsum Co.
supra. Counsel asserted that the inspectors who issued the
vi ol ati ons and found that they were "significant and
substantial ,"” followed certain policy directives and instructions
fromtheir MSHA district manager. Respondent's counsel indicated
that this policy is included in the comments nade
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the Secretary's rul emakers during the considerations which
preceded the promul gation of the revised Part 100 criteria and
procedures for proposed civil penalty assessnents.

Respondent' s counsel pointed out that MSHA's policy
concerning "S & S" findings is articulated at 47 Fed. Reg. 22292,
May 21, 1982, as foll ows:

MSHA i nspectors already make a determination as to
whi ch violations of the Act are of a serious nature. In
maki ng this determnation, inspectors first evaluate

whet her an injury or illness is reasonably likely to
occur if the violation is not corrected. Next, the
i nspector nust eval uate whether the injury or illness,

were it to occur, would be reasonably serious. In these
areas, inspectors use their experience, background and
training together with an eval uati on of the actua

ci rcunst ances surrounding the violation to arrive at an
i ndependent judgnment. Where a violation is not
reasonably likely to result in a reasonably serious
injury or illness, a sunmary revi ew and anal ysis of the
condition or practice is conducted. However, when the
gravity factor is |low and good faith is established

t hrough abat enment, MSHA does not believe that an

i ndi vidualized anal ysis of the negligence, size and
history criteria is appropriate or necessary.

I nspect or Shade explained his interpretation of an "S & S
violation as follows (Tr. 64-71):

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: Let me ask the

i nspectors up front. Wat instructions, if any, do you
receive fromyour district office as to how you
interpret S & S?

THE WTNESS: When we find a violation and we see it is
reasonably likely that an accident would occur, that an
acci dent would occur and it is reasonably likely that

t he acci dent woul d be serious before it could be

t er m nat ed.

* * * * * * * * * *

Q M. Shade, isn't it true that your instructions are
that you are to assume every violation will never be
corrected?
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A. Before it can be ternm nated, before it can be
corrected, if we find a violation and we see that
this violation will not be corrected in one night,
we issue a citation.

Q Isn't it true you are supposed to base your
determ nation as to what is a significant and
substantial violation on an assunption that the
condition will never be corrected?

A. This was one of the criteria of S &S, but--

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: | do not understand
how anybody can cone to the conclusion of an assunption
that a violation found by the inspector will never be
corrected.

M5. SYMONS: | don't, either, but that is what they have
been instructed to do.

THE WTNESS: They said before it can be corrected, if
we wouldn't find this violation, they assuned that this
vi ol ati on would not be corrected, so it would stay in
the sane position as if it wasn't found.

VWhen asked to explain the procedures he follows in making a
determ nation as to whether a violationis "S & S," Inspector
Shade testified in pertinent part as follows (Tr. 423-433):

THE WTNESS: Well, we see a violation, and we usual ly
have an escort with us, and we di scuss the violation
with the escort, but as far as information on it,
whenever we have a violation that we think coul d cause
an accident before this could be corrected or if it
weren't corrected, then we have to nark S & S. These
are our instructions.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: Ms. G srmondi, | just
don't understand that. Their instructions are, when
they find a violation, they act under the assunption
that had the inspector not found it, the m ne operator
would find it and likely not do anything about it, and
therefore, since the inspector caught it and forced
themto correct it through the citation process, that
itisS&S
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The citation process itself requires the operator to
abate. He is subject to withdrawal order, and if he
doesn't abate it, then he is given a $1,000 a day

penalty. | just don't understand this theory.
* * * * * * * * *
M5. ASMONDI: | don't think it's so nuch a question,

Your Honor, that the inspector assunes that the
violation is not going to be corrected.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KQUTRAS: That's what he j ust
sai d.

M5. G SMONDI: Well, what I"'mtrying to say it, | think
that the significant and substantial determ nation is
intended to be and is, in fact, keyed into the facts of
the violation and the facts that are in existence at
the tine that it is cited and that can reasonably be
expect ed.

* * * * * * * * *

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: M. Shade, what are
your instructions as you understand themon S & S? What
i s your understanding of how you are to approach
marking a violation S & S?

THE WTNESS: If this violation is reasonably likely to
cause an acci dent.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: Now, what
i nstructions do you have to determ ne whether or not it
is reasonably likely?

THE WTNESS: Let nme finish. It is reasonably likely
that it could cause an accident and that it is
reasonably likely that it would be a serious accident
if it were not corrected.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: [f it were not
corrected?

THE W TNESS: That's right.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: \Wat does that nean?
VWhat is your understanding of "if it is not corrected"?
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THE WTNESS: |If the violation wasn't corrected

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: Wl |, how can it not
be corrected if you are there citing it? Howis it not
going to be corrected? How can the operator refuse to
correct a violation that you have cited?

THE WTNESS: Well, they don't refuse to correct it as
far as that goes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: How does t hat
| anguage pl ay.

THE WTNESS: Wll, to me it nmeans that if it weren't
corrected at any tine.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: That presupposes t hat
it existed for some period of time; isn't that true?

THE WTNESS: Yes, or that it would exist for sone
period of tine. To nme, that is what it neans.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: So, in this case, had
you not been there on January 13th to issue this
citation, you are telling me that that violation
probably existed that day and the next day, and then
when you went in there and, let's assunme you went in
there on the 15th and found it, that you would find it
S & S, because it hadn't been corrected?

THE W TNESS: Yes.
ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KQUTRAS: Do you under st and,
M ss G snpondi, what that neans?

M5. G SMONDI: |I'mnot sure | understood just that
little bit of dialogue.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: He said that his
instructions are he marks S & S on the theory that the
vi ol ati on would not be corrected. That's part of the
formul a. What does that nean?
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M5. G SMONDI: Well, | think that is the general
term nol ogy that is used in MSHA policies, but
probably unfortunate, | think, that what it neans--

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: Tell me what it
means. There is enough bureaucratic policies around
that you and I don't understand. Is it witten
somepl ace? | want to know what it means.

M5. GASMONDI: |I'msure there is some kind of letter or
statenment of what the policy is witten sonewhere.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: Tell me what it neans
in your mnd.

M5. G SMONSI: What it means in ny mind is that you nake
an S & S determ nation on the basis of the condition

t hat you observe and that you cite.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: Al l right.

M5. d SMONDI : Now, obviously when you observe it and

when you cite it, it is not corrected. | think that the
i nspector is, you know, this stuff about whether or not
it's going to remain uncorrected forever, | think is

m sl eadi ng.

I think that the question is, you know, what is the
likely effect of this violation as I'mlooking at it,
you know, as | cite it. As | said, obviously as you are
citing it, it is not corrected. It is what it is.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOUTRAS: And is it S & S at
t hat point?

M5. ASMONDI: | think it depends on the factors that we
are tal ki ng about.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE KOQUTRAS: What coul d happen if

the inspector didn't appear and cause himto correct
it?
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M5. G SMONDI : Exactly.

THE WTNESS: As far as S & Sis concerned, it is not
necessarily permssibility. W have to look at it,

first of all, is it a violation? If it's a violation
either the condition at the tine or in our own

know edge through training and experience and using the
entire country, you know, things that have happened

t hroughout the entire country, let's put it that way,

if the event should occur that we are citing, could it
cause an injury or an illness?

Now, if it passes that test that we feel that it could
create an illness or an injury, which we have al so been
instructed that that neans that should a person |ose
one day's work or have to be reassigned for one day
fromhis normal duties, then it woul d be considered a
significant or substantial type injury, then it becones
S &S.

BY MS. SYMONS

Q So that any violation which could result in an
injury over any period of tine is significant and
substantial ?

A Well, | left that out, I"'msorry. Wien we | ook at
the violation, we also nmust in our owmn mind say, if the
condi tion were left uncorrected--

Q kay, are you supposed to give any effect to the
surroundi ng circunstances?

A. Well, there is sonme consideration given to the
condition that we find, yes.

Addi ti onal Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons
Significant and Substantial Violations

PENN 83-129

Ctation No. 2102605

I nspect or Shade nade his "S & S" determ nati on because of

the Iack of overhead guarding on the trolley wire at the
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"A Flat 6 Chute track switch.”" He determined that the violation
was "S & S" because the wire was energized, it was five and
one-hal f feet off the ground, and was | ocated where the

| oconoti ves, jeeps, and ot her personnel carriers passed under the
unprotected overhead wire. H s concern was that someone standi ng
up in the carriers, or alighting fromthe carriers, could contact
t he unguarded wires. Respondent does not dispute the fact that
the guarding normally in place for the overhead wires had fallen
or been knocked down, and that the trolley wire in question was
not guarded or protected.

On the basis of all of the evidence adduced here, | concl ude
and find that the inspector's "S & S" finding is clearly
supportable. The overhead trolley wire was not guarded, nmen and
equi prent regularly ran under it, and it would not be too
difficult for a miner to reach up and contact the wire or
i nadvertently come into contact with it while riding in a
conveyance or alighting fromit when it stopped under the
unguarded wire. Here, the inspector's "S & S" finding is rationa
and supportable, and I T I S AFFI RVED

Ctation No. 2102611

In this instance I nspector Shade found that the violation
was "significant and substantial" because he believed that the
light wires which were in contact with the wooden cribs and roof
coal presented a fire hazard. In his view, in the event of a roof
fall, the wire could be broken or damaged, and a short would
result, thereby posing a fire hazard.

I nspect or Shade believed that the nmine was idle at the tine
the citation was issued. While he is not an electrician, he
confirmed that the wires were fully insul ated, he observed no
breaks, and the wires were not rubbing in any way. He coul d not
state whether there was any tension on the wires, and he conceded
that he had no reason to believe that the cited conditions would
not have been di scovered during the regular weekly electrica
i nspection. He admitted that he did not check the preshift
exam nati on books, and had no idea how long the cited conditions
had exi st ed.

I conclude and find that |Inspector Shade's belief that the
roof would fall at some unspecified time in the future, thereby
possi bly damaging the wire and causing a fire is
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specul ati ve and unsupported. G ven the aforenentioned conditions
whi ch the inspector observed, | cannot conclude that it was
reasonably likely that the wire resting on the crib or in contact
with the roof presented the likelihood of an injury or hazard.
VWhile | have affirned a violation of the cited safety standard,
and have concluded that it was serious, | cannot conclude that it
was significant and substantial. Accordingly, the inspector's
finding | S REJECTED, and I T IS VACATED

Ctation No. 2102609

On the facts surrounding this particular violation, | cannot
conclude that the inspector's "S & S" findings are supportable.
Here, the area was roof bolted and additional support was
provided along the left rib by neans of roof jacks. The period of
time which the m ner spent under unsupported roof was at nost a
few seconds. When he wal ked out to install a jack, he was in ful
view of the inspector and a foreman, and he was i medi ately
cal l ed back out. Gven the fact that MSHA itself concedes that
m ners nust go under unsupported roof to install roof supports,
critical factors which nust be considered include the anount of
time a miner is under unsupported roof, the overall roof
conditions, and whether or not the inmredi ate area i s supported.

Here, | am convinced that the inspector nmade an "automatic" "S &
S" finding sinmply because it involved roof support. Gven the
facts here, | find that the inspector's finding of "S & S" is

unsupportable, and I T I S REJECTED and VACATED
Citation No. 2102619

In this case, prior to the start of mning, the inspector
and the foreman on the scene were both aware of the fact that the
amount of air at the end of the line curtain was |ess than the
requi red anount. The foreman took i medi ate renedial steps to
i nsure conpliance, and based on his air readings, nore than the
requi red anount of air was achieved and the inspector |eft.
However, when he returned, an interruption to the air flow,
caused by a collapsing curtain, and which had not been detected
by the mners in the work area, caused the air flow to di m nish
VWhen informed of this fact, the foreman i rmedi ately discovered

the problem and corrected it. Gven these circunstances, | cannot
conclude that the violation was "S & S." Gven all of the
prevailing circunstances, | fail to understand how the inspector

could conclude that an injury or
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accident was likely to occur. Here, both the inspector and the
foreman were both aware of the problemfromthe outset, and steps
were quickly taken to correct the problem

I am convinced that the inspector here found an "S & S"
violation on the basis of his belief that all such violations are
"S &S " This theory of "S & S" is rejected. | conclude and find
that the inspector nust consider the prevailing conditions as
well as the fact that the operator is on top of the problem and
is attenpting to make corrections. Accordingly, on the facts here
presented, the inspector's "S & S" finding IS REJECTED, and IT IS
VACATED.

PENN 83-128
Ctation No. 2103081

In this case, Inspector Wl fe found that the citation was
"significant and substantial" because he believed that the
opening in the contactor conpartment of the scoop which was cited
posed a potential hazard of a methane ignition. M. Wlfe
"believed" that no nethane was detected in the area, that the
ventilation was good, and that "it could well be" that the scoop
was three crosscuts outby the | ast open crosscut. However, the
scoop was often used for cleanup details and the hauling of
supplies, and was used at the face. G ven these variety of uses,
as well as the fact that the scoop was required to be exam ned
weekly, | believe it was reasonably likely that the | oosened bolt
whi ch rendered the machi ne non-perm ssi bl e woul d have gone
undetected. Coupled with the fact that the mine had previously
experi enced nethane face ignitions, and the fact that the mne is
on a section 301(i) "spot inspection status" because of the
amount of nethane |iberated, | cannot conclude that the
i nspector's "S & S" finding is unsupportable. As a matter of
fact, in this instance, respondent's ventilation foreman Rtz
expressed concern about an uncorrected permissibility violation
of this kind, and he confirnmed that ventilation can be
interrupted at any tinme, and that the presence of nethane is
unpredi ctable. The "S & S" finding by Inspector Wlfe IS
AFFI RVED

PENN 83- 137
Citation No. 2102681
I nspector Wehr made an "S & S" determ nation on the basis of

his belief that an unguarded trolley wire could be contacted by a
m ner during the course of his regular travel in
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the m ne, whether it be by notorized conveyance or on foot. The
guardi ng which was normally in place had been knocked down, and
t he i nspector was concerned that a mner riding in one of the
conveyances whi ch normally passed under the wire could come in
contact with the wre.

I nspector Wehr testified that he was concerned that a person
running a | oconotive could come in contact with the overhead
unguarded wire while passing under it, and that shock or fata
injuries could result (Tr. 338). He also indicated that with the
amount of traffic passing under the wire, it was reasonably
likely that sonmeone could cone in contact with the unprotected
wire (Tr. 339).

VWile it may be true that trolley poles do becone disl odged
fromtrack haul age equi pnent fromtinme-to tinme and that overhead
guarding for trolley wires is a constant problemin the mne, the
fact is that the respondent here does not dispute the fact that
the cited trolley wire was not guarded. Further, based on the
credible testinony by the inspector, which has not been rebutted
by the respondent, it seens clear to nme that nmen do pass
regul arly under the wire which was not guarded at the tinme the
i nspector observed and cited it. Gven the fact that soneone
could readily contact or reach the unguarded energized wire, |
conclude and find that the inspector's finding of "S & S" is
supported. Accordingly, his finding in this regard IS AFFlI RVED

PENN 83- 136
Ctation No. 2103984

In this case, Inspector Wl fe issued the citation after
finding that one of the bolts which secured the Iid to the main
contactor conpartnent of a roof bolter was m ssing. Wth regard
to his "S & S" finding, the parties agreed to incorporate M.

Wl fe's prior testinony regarding the permssibility violation
concerning a scoop (Citation No. 213081), in support of his "S &
S" finding concerning the roof bolter

In defense of the citation, the parties agreed to accept a
proffer by respondent's witness Ritz that the roof bolter in
guestion was parked two bl ocks outby the | ast open crosscut when
the inspector cited it, and that at the tine the inspector
observed the cited condition the section was wet and well rock
dusted, that the ventilation was good, and that no nethane was
detected on the section.
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In the previous scoop violation, the facts established that there
was an opening in the contactor conpartnent which could have
adm tted nethane, thereby sparking an ignition. In the instant
case concerning the roof bolter, M. Wlfe confirmed that there
was no opening present (Tr. 583). However, he believed that with
the use of the machine, the heating and cooling process would
al | ow nmethane to be drawn into the conpartment. \When asked how
this was possible if there were no opening, M. Wl fe alluded to
a possi bl e warpi ng process caused by "an ignition inside the
conmpartnment” (Tr. 585).

In response to further questions, M. Wlfe could not state
how many bolts were required to be on the conpartnent. He
"guessed" at a nunber between 18 and 24. \WWile explaining his
"flane path" theory, he "guessed" that the flane path for the
particul ar conpartnent size in question was an inch and one-hal f,
but he was "not sure," and sinply stated that "it was cl ose
enough" (Tr. 586).

Further exam nation of the record with regard to this
citation |l eads nme to conclude that Inspector Wlfe nade his "S &
S" finding on the basis of his general belief that nethane
ignitions have resulted frompermssibility violations. He
conceded that in naking his "S & S" determ nations, he does not
necessarily consider the particular prevailing mne conditions,
and in fact conceded that he had no idea as to those conditions
whi ch may have prevailed when he issued the citation (Tr.
587-589) .

On the facts in this case, | am convinced that |nspector
Wl fe made his "S & S" determination on the assunption that this
particular permssibility violation was per se "S & S," and t hat
he did so on the specul ative assunption that all permssibility
vi ol ati ons cause nethane ignitions. G ven these circunstances,
and the facts surrounding this particular citation, his "S & S"
concl usions are sinmply not supportable. Accordingly, his finding
inthis regard I S REJECTED, and his "S & S" finding IS VACATED

Penal ty Assessnents

On the basis of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons, and
taking into account the requirenents of section 110(i) of the
Act, | conclude and find that the following civil penalty
assessnents are appropriate for the citations which have been
affirnmed:
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PENN 83-121

Citation No.
2102696
PENN 83-129
Citation No.
2102605
2102608
2102618
2102611
2102619
2102609
PENN 83-128
Citation No.
2103081
PENN 83-137
Citation No.
2102681
PENN 83-136
Citation No.

2103084

Respondent

Dat e

1/12/83

Dat e
1/ 7/ 83
1/ 12/ 83
1/ 24/ 83
1/ 13/ 83

1/ 24/ 83
1/12/83

Dat e

1/19/ 83

Dat e

12/ 14/ 82

Dat e

2/ 8/ 83

'S ORDERED to pay civil
for the violations in question,

30 CFR Section

75. 1403

30 CFR Section
75. 1003
75. 503
75. 503
75. 516

75. 316
75.503

30 CFR Section

75.503

30 CFR Section

75.1003

30 CFR Section

75.503

CORDER

Assessnent

$115

Assessnent
$205
125
150
120

75
125

Assessnent

$300

Assessnent

$225

Assessnent

$125

penal ti es assessed by ne

in the amobunts shown above, and
paynment is to be made to MSHA within thirty (30) days of the date
of these decisions and O der.
proceedi ngs are di sm ssed.

Ceorge A. Koutras

Admi ni strative Law Judge

Upon recei pt of paynment, these



